1978

Anni Kristensen v. Poul Erik Kristensen : Brief of Appellant on Appeal

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the refusal of the District Court to modify a Decree of Divorce in regard to the custody of the minor children of the parties.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The parties were divorced after a trial before the Third Judicial District Court, the Honorable Jay E. Banks presiding, on the 24th day of May, 1977. (R. 58-61.) The Decree awarded care, custody and control of the four minor children of the parties to the plaintiff (respondent) even though the three oldest children had resided with the defendant (appellant) for the 14 months between the time the respondent left the home of the parties and the entry of the Decree. (R. 7, 9-10, 24, 26, 59; p. 2-3, Custody Evaluation.) In mid-June of 1977 the respondent moved herself and the children in with her boyfriend, Alphonse Mulder (Tr. 73-74), and on two occasions after the children

were placed in her custody, they went to the Juvenile Court for assistance regarding their placement with the plaintiff. (Protective Services Referral Report.) The defendant then filed a Motion to Modify the Decree of Divorce based on the change of circumstances and the best interests of the children. (R. 83-86.) The Petition for Modification of the Decree of Divorce was set for hearing before the Honorable David K. Winder, one of the Judges of the Third Judicial District Court, at 10:00 A.M. on August 3, 1977. At that time, pursuant to stipulation of the parties (R. 98-99), the Court ordered (R. 95-97, 100) that a custody evaluation be performed to determine proper placement of the children. The matter was then set for trial on the 25th day of August, 1977. (R. 101.) On the 25th day of August, 1977, the appellant appeared in person and by counsel before the Honorable Jay E. Banks, but counsel for the respondent was ill and could not attend the hearing. (R. 102, 112-113.) Judge Banks, after reviewing the custody evaluation, ruled that temporary care, custody and control of Anne Marie, Erik and Alan, the three oldest children of the parties, should be temporarily transferred from the respondent to the appellant. (R. 102, 112-113.) The Motion for Modification then came on for trial on the 20th day of September, 1977 before the Honorable James S. Sawaya who, by an Order entered on the 27th day of September, 1977, denied the defendant's Motion to Modify the Decree of Divorce. (R. 114, 115, 128.) The defendant then filed this appeal. (R. 131.)

NATURE OF RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant seeks reversal of the Order of the District Court refusing to modify the Decree of Divorce and an Order from this Court awarding care, custody and control of the minor children of the parties to himself.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On or about the 1st day of May, 1976, the respondent left the children, the appellant and the marital home of the parties and moved in with Mr. Alphonse Mulder. (R. 9-10.) She filed an action for divorce against the appellant on the 14th day of June, 1976. (R. 2-3.) At the time that she moved from her home, the respondent left all four of the minor children of the parties in the care, custody and control of the defendant. (R. 9-10.) Approximately one month thereafter, pursuant to agreement between the parties, the respondent was given physical custody of the youngest child of the parties, an infant, Alice. (Custody Evaluation pp. 2-3; R. 9-10, 15.) The three older children resided with the appellant and the youngest child resided with the respondent until June 7, 1977. (R. 70.) After the trial, prior to which there had been no custody evaluation performed by or on behalf of the Court, care, custody and control of the four minor children of the parties was awarded to the respondent. (R. 40, 59.) Actual custody of the three older children was transferred to the respondent on June 7, 1977. (R. 70.) The children initially refused to go with the respondent and the transfer was

effectuated by the Utah State Division of Family Services and the Second District Juvenile Court over a several day period. (Protective Services Referral Report; Custody Evaluation, p. 3.)

Within ten days from the time the children moved in with the respondent, she moved them and herself in with Alphonse Mulder. (Tr. of Hearing September 20, 1978, pp. 73-74.)¹ The children resided with the respondent and Alphonse Mulder for a period of approximately one month prior to coming back to the appellant for a one-month summer visitation. (Custody Evaluation, p. 3.) Based on the actions of the respondent and the children, what the children told him and the results of psychological tests administered to the children on July 9, 1977 and August 2, 1977 (Exhibits D-1 and D-2), the appellant filed a Motion to Modify the Decree of Divorce and requested a custody evaluation by the District Court. (R. 83.) This was stipulated to by the parties (R. 98-99) and ordered by the Court. (R. 95-97, 100.) A custody evaluation was made and filed with the Court. (R. 103, 104, Exhibits.)

The matter came on for trial before the Honorable Jay E. Banks on August 25, 1977. However, Earl S. Spafford, the attorney then representing the respondent, entered the hospital the day before the scheduled trial. On motion of his associate

1. All transcript references, exhibit references and custody evaluation and written supplement will pertain to the hearing held on September 20, 1977 before Judge Sawaya, unless otherwise noted.

the trial was continued to the 20th day of September, 1977. (R. 102, 112-113.) However, Judge Banks, after reviewing the custody evaluation performed for the Court, entered an Order temporarily transferring custody of the older three children from the respondent to the appellant. (R. 102, 112-113.)

The custody evaluation performed by Mr. Kim Peterson firmly recommended that care, custody and control of the three older children of the parties be transferred from the respondent to the appellant. He found that while both parents had emotional problems, the respondent was the least stable and least capable parent of the two. (Original Custody Evaluation, p. 9; Psychological Report of Dr. Cutler.) He found the three older children were psychologically much closer to their father, the appellant, than their mother, the respondent. (Original Custody Evaluation, p. 9; Psychological Report of Dr. Cutler.) The evaluation and conclusion of Mr. Peterson were concurred in by Drs. Malcolm and Barbara Liebroder who, after administering clinical psychological examinations to the children, determined that the three older children were strongly attached to their father (the appellant) and custody should be vested in him. (Exhibit D-2.) Drs. Malcolm and Barbara Liebroder also felt that custody of the youngest child, Alice, should be awarded to the defendant in order to allow her strong relationship with her siblings to continue. (Exhibit D-1.)

After Judge Banks entered his Order, Anne Marie, the oldest of the children, refused to leave her mother and go to her

father. She was then re-examined by both Dr. and Dr. Liebroder and Kim Peterson. Drs. Malcolm and Barbara Liebroder felt her action was based on her realization that her mother was a weaker parent than her father, and Anne Marie's belief that she had to protect her mother. (Exhibit D-3.) Kim Peterson, on the other hand, found that her feelings were evoked as a direct result of manipulation and pressure applied by both the respondent and Alphonse Mulder. (Written Supplement to Custody Evaluation; Exhibit.) Both Kim Peterson and the psychologists from the Utah Psychological Center reaffirmed, despite her actions, that Anne Marie should be placed in the custody of her father (the appellant). (Tr. 13, 40; Exhibit D-3; Handwritten Supplement to Custody Evaluation; Exhibits.)

On the 20th day of September, 1977, the matter came on for trial before the Honorable James S. Sawaya, one of the Judges of the Third Judicial District Court who, after hearing the testimony of Kim Peterson, Bryant Eastham, Dr. Malcolm Liebroder, Mr. Kent McDonald and the parties (Tr. pp. 2-87; R. 114), and considering both the original custody evaluation and the written supplement thereto (Exhibits), refused to modify the Decree of Divorce. (R. 115, 128.) This appeal of that Order was thereafter filed. (R. 131.)

CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL OF THE MINOR CHILDREN OF THE PARTIES SHOULD BE VESTED IN THE APPELLANT.

In the instant matter the evidence presented to the Trial Court clearly demonstrated that a change of circumstances

had occurred since the entry of the Decree of Divorce and that it was in the best interest of the minor children of the parties that the Decree be modified to place care, custody and control of them with the appellant. This Court has clearly stated the standards for a change of custody of children.

" . . . an award of custody of children in a divorce proceeding is not permanent. If circumstances change so that their welfare and best interests would be served thereby, the court has continuing jurisdiction and authority to make appropriate changes." Smith v. Smith, 564 P.2d 307 at 309 (Utah, 1977).

In the instant case the change of circumstances occurred within ten days of the time the children were taken from the appellant and placed with the respondent. The respondent moved herself and the children in with Alphonse Mulder, her boyfriend. (Tr. 73-74, Custody Evaluation; Exhibits.) The children responded by seeking to get out of the home. They told their father of their unhappiness and he had them tested by a psychologist who confirmed their poor emotional condition. (Exhibits D-1 and D-2.) Since either of these occurrences forms a sufficient basis to justify the Court again examining the situation to determine what is the best interest of the children, Judge Sawaya then was required by the evidence before him to follow the mandate of this Court that:

"The controlling factor being that which is in the best interest and welfare of the minor child." Rice v. Rice, 564 P.2d 305, 306 (Utah, 1977).

or, as this Court has previously declared:

"In addition to and quite beyond the rights of the parents, there is the important prin-

principle that the paramount consideration is the long-term welfare and adjustment of the children." Cox v. Cox, 532 P.2d 994 at 996 (Utah, 1975).

Kim Peterson, the social worker who performed the custody evaluation for the Court (Tr. 40; Custody Evaluation and Written Supplement in Exhibits), Doctors Barbara Liebroder and Malcolm Liebroder in their psychological evaluations of the children (Tr. 25; Exhibits D-1, D-2 and D-3), and Bryant Eastham a certified social worker with an M.S.W., employed by the Protective Services Section of the Utah State Division of Family Services (Tr. 46) recommended that the older three children of the parties should be placed with their father. Each of these recommendations were made after the children had been placed with their mother and she had moved them and herself into the home of her boyfriend, Alphonse Mulder. These recommendations were made after the respondent had had the children placed with her and they had been exposed to life with her and her boyfriend.

The emotional ties of these children to their father are very strong and their hostility toward their mother is very great. (Exhibits D-1, D-2 and D-3; Custody Evaluation and Written Supplement.) They felt they could rely on their father they could not rely on their mother. (Exhibit D-2.) Each of the mental health professionals who examined the children described their state of emotional turmoil; Drs. Malcolm and Barbara Liebroder (Exhibits D-1, D-2 and D-3), Kim Peterson (Custody Evaluation and Written Supplement), Bryant Eastham (Tr. 46-47), Kent

McDonald (R. 65). All of these witnesses except Mr. McDonald declared their belief that this could best be ended by placing the children with their father.

While counsel representing the respondent attempted on cross-examination to show that the children were being manipulated and expressed a desire to live with the parent with whom they had most recently resided, this was specifically rejected by Dr. Liebroder (Tr. 34), by Kim Peterson (Tr. 41, 42) and by Bryant Eastham (Tr. 46, 48). In fact, the respondent's witness, Mr. McDonald, stated that Erik had never, at any time, varied in his desire, declared both in the presence and absence of the respondent that he wished to live with his father. (Tr. 64, 65.)

The only overt evidence of any manipulation was that of the respondent. Kim Peterson described the manipulation in which the respondent engaged. The respondent and her boyfriend repeatedly applied pressure to Anne Marie not to go with her father and Kim Peterson felt Anne Marie's change of mind was the result of this pressure. (Written Supplement to Custody Evaluation; Exhibits.)

Kent McDonald seemed to feel the reverse was true. (Tr. 64.) However, in evaluating the testimony of Mr. McDonald it must be noted that he has only a master's degree in psychology (R. 57), administered no clinical or psychological tests to the children (Tr. 61, 65), and possesses neither the background, training or experience possessed by Dr. Malcolm Liebroder (R. 8,

9), who has a Ph.D. in psychology, extensive testing and therapy background, and serves as a consultant for a number of State and Federal agencies. (Tr. 8, 9.) Dr. Barbara Liebroder also has a Ph.D. in Psychology. (Exhibits D-1, D-2 and D-3.)

Examination of the experience and background of the other expert witnesses to determine the appropriate weight to be given to their testimony demonstrates that Kim Peterson holds a degree of Master of Social Work and is employed as a psychiatric social worker at the Primary Children's Medical Center. (Tr. 38.) Bryant Eastham holds a Degree of Master of Social Work and is employed as a protective service caseworker for the Utah State Division of Family Services. (Tr. 44-45.)

In addition to evaluation of the difference in the quality of the differing experts, the contact of each with the case requires further qualification of the testimony of Mr. McDonald. While Dr. Malcolm Liebroder, Kim Peterson and Bryant Eastham testified after contact with the children and both parents that the appellant was the proper parent to have custody of the three older children of the parties, Kent McDonald, the sole expert witness offered on behalf of the respondent, testified merely that the respondent was a suitable parent to have custody of the children (Tr. 62), he had no direct knowledge of the appellant (Tr. 66) and had never administered clinical or psychological tests to the children themselves. (Tr. 61, 65.) Dr. Malcolm Liebroder, testifying on behalf of himself and his co-

tester, Dr. Barbara Liebroder, completed extensive clinical testing and interviewing of the children before testifying. (Tr. 7-25, Exhibits D-1, D-2 and D-3.)

The only disagreement between the experts called by the appellant (Dr. Malcolm Liebroder and Bryant Eastham) or the Court (Kim Peterson) was in regard to custody of Alice, the youngest child of the parties. Drs. Malcolm and Barbara Liebroder felt that Alice had strong ties with her siblings and thus should be placed with them with their father. (Exhibit D-1.) Kim Peterson, who did the evaluation for and on behalf of the Court, felt that Alice had strong emotional ties with her mother and should remain with her. (Custody Evaluation; Exhibits.) This was also the opinion of Bryant Eastham. (Tr. 46.)

The evidence presented to Judge Sawaya was overwhelming in its weight and sufficiency that there had occurred a change of circumstances since the entry of the Decree of Divorce and the best interests of the children required the modification of the Decree of Divorce to place their care, custody and control with the appellant. He erred in his failure to follow the rules enunciated by this Court and do so.

CONCLUSION

This Court, on the record before it, should reverse the Trial Court, modify the Decree of Divorce, and award care, custody and control of the four minor children of the parties to the appellant.