1978

# Anni Kristensen v. Poul Erik Kristensen : Brief on Appeal

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an Appeal by the Defendant/Appellant from an Order of the District Court wherein said Court refused to modify a Decree of Divorce with regard to the custody of the parties minor children.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

Following a two day trial, the lower court, by the Honorable Jay E. Banks, awarded care, custody and control of the parties' four minor children to the plaintiff. Approximately six weeks following the entry of the aforesaid Decree of Divorce, the Defendant filed his Motion for Modification of said Decree, seeking custody of the minor children. Again following a two day hearing on Defendant's Motion, Judge James S. Sawaya, failing to find change of circumstances, or good cause warranted by the best interest of the children, denied the Defendant's Motion, said denial being the subject matter of this Appeal.

### NATURE OF RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondent seeks affirmation of the Order of the District Court denying the Appellant's Motion to Modify the Decree of Divorce pertaining to the care, custody, and control of the minor children of the parties which by said Decree had been reposed with the Respondent.

### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Following several months of extremely cruel treatment which forced the Plaintiff to leave her home in fear for her personal safety, (R. 50) she filed a Complaint seeking a Divorce. (R. 2-3) An inordinately long delay ensued wherein the parties sought relief pertaining to custody of the parties' four minor children culminating in a trial, the Honorable Jay E. Banks presiding, on the 7th and 8th days of April, 1977 (R. 38-39) The issue of custody of the parties' children was pursued in great detail as evidenced by the witnesses called by the parties to testify regarding said issue. On April 12, 1977, Judge Banks ordered:

"Custody of the children is awarded to the mother with very liberal visitation to the Defendant to include the Defendant have the children for one month during the summer (no support to be paid during that time)." (R. 40)

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and a Decree of Divorce in conformity with Judge Bank's decision were entered on the 24th day of May, 1977. (R. 50-61)

"The Court expressly finds that because of the age of circumstance of the (sic) and of the parties, the best interests of the children will be served by their being in the physical custody, care and control of plaintiff." (Emphasis added. R. 51 and R. 59)

Owing to the apparent efforts of the parties to "poison the well" the Court found it necessary to enter the following finding:

"The Court feels it reasonable and finds that the best interest of the parties and of their children will be served by an affirmative order requiring cooperation with one another as to matters of visitation and an order restraining the parties from discussing with the children or with third persons other than their attorneys or professional counselors, the difficulties existing between the parties and the circumstances giving rise to the divorce or the frustrations or inadequacies which either of the parties may feel as a result thereof. (R. 53 & R. 61)

Between the time when the Plaintiff was forced from the marital abode and the entry of the Decree of Divorce, the Defendant refused to permit the Plaintiff to have reasonable visitation with the parties' three oldest children (the youngest child then residing with the Plaintiff), and notwithstanding efforts by the Plaintiff to obtain custody of the three oldest children, the Court, by Judge Dean E. Conder, ordered that the Defendant should have custody of the three oldest children during the pendency of the divorce action. (R. 26-27)

In total disregard for the Court's Order as contained in the Decree of Divorce, the Defendant refused to tender custody of the children to the Plaintiff, thus precipitating a Motion for an Order to Show Cause being brought before Judge Banks on the 7th day of June, 1977, together with a Motion to Amend or Alter the Decree of Divorce (R. 43-47) Judge Banks on said occasion made the following statement:

"You turn those children over. You (Mr. Kristensen) turn those children over to the mother. There is no doubt in the Court's mind that you have been influencing the children, because I know the youngest boy does not have the capacity to make the decisions that he

did, and there's no doubt in my mind that you are the one that caused the children to be placed in protective custody. There's absolutely no question that she is going to have those children, and if either of you use those children to get back at the other the Court will put the offending party in jail. And I'll make it mighty difficult on you and I want you to know that." (R. 162-163)

At the conclusion of the aforesaid Hearing, Judge Banks ordered the Defendant to immediately comply with the Decree of Divorce. (R. 70-71)

Thereafter, on or about the 7th day of June, 1977, the Plaintiff finally obtained, pursuant to an Order of the Court, physical custody of the children. Within one month thereof the Defendant in his ongoing effort to continue the vexatious nature of the divorce proceeding filed his "Motion in re Contempt and to Order Visitation" (R. 75-81) Prior to hearing on said Motion the Plaintiff tendered custody of the children to the Defendant for the purpose of the one month summer visitation as contemplated under the Decree of Divorce. While the children were in the custody of the Defendant, the Defendant caused to be filed his "Motion to Modify Decree of Divorce" on the 20th day of July, 1977. (R. 83-84) And thereafter refused to tender the children back to the custodial parent, the Respondent herein.

On August 25, 1977, the matter again came before Judge Banks wherein the Court ordered that temporary custody of the three older children should be remanded to the Defendant and the custody of the younger child be reposed in the Plaintiff. The matter was then set for trial on the 20th day of September, 1977, and Judge Banks concluded his Order by the following edict:

"This temporary order is not to influence the Court which hears the matter. It will be without prejudice or advantage to either party." (R. 102)

A Custody Evaluation was filed with the above entitled Court on August 26, 1977, and the Order to Show Cause in re Modification was then heard by the Honorable James S. Sawaya on the 20th day of September, 1977 (less than six months after the two day trial of the Divorce) again several witnesses were elicited by the Defendant both with regard to the custody evaluation and in support of Defendant's position regarding Modification of the Decree of Divorce. On the 27th day of September, 1977, Judge Sawaya ordered that the Motion to Modify the Decree of Divorce as to custody of the minor children be denied. Said Order being entered by Judge Sawaya on the 10th day of November, 1977, together with an Order denying the Defendant's Motion to Amend Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (R. 128).

The Defendant then filed his Notice of Appeal on the 21st day of November, 1977. The Defendant (R. 131) filed a Motion to Stay Judge Sawaya's Order during the pendency of the Appeal which Motion was denied by Judge Sawaya on the 12th day of December, 1977. (R. 139-141) The aforesaid Order provided in part:

"It is hereby Ordered as follows: (1) The defendant's Motion for Stay pending appeal is denied. (2) That the temporary order of district Judge Banks shifting custody of some of minor children of the parties to the defendant is dissolved. (3) That pursuant to the Decree of Divorce plaintiff is to be restored custody of all four (4) of the minor children of the parties." (R. 140)

Notwithstanding this Order, the Defendant failed and refused to tender custody of the parties' boys over to the Plaintiff, and at the present

the two boys remain in the physical custody of the Defendant.

#### ARGUMENT

THE CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL OF THE PARTIES MINOR CHILDREN SHOULD CONTINUE TO BE VESTED IN THE RESPONDENT.

Probably one of the most important and salient factors and yet possibly overlooked within the context of this most unfortunate and endless litigation is found in the Defendant's "Motion for Stay Pending Appeal" (R. 117-118). The statement has questionable materiality to that particular motion but sets forth succinctly the Defendant's contempt for the Courts. In referring to the custody of boys Erik and Alan the following statement appears:

" . . . and allow the Order insofar as it places custody of Erik and Alan to remain in effect and to allow those children to remain with the Defendant on the grounds that the said children, Erik and Alan Kristensen, have expressed their desire to live with the Defendant, that they resided with the Defendant for 17 of the last 18 months . . ."  
(Emphasis Added)

That statement was made on the 29th day of September, 1977. Today a proper accounting would show that notwithstanding Court Decrees and Orders to the contrary the Defendant has retained custody of the boys for 24 of the last 25 months.

The above circumstances find a striking similarity in the case of Watts v. Watts, 445 P.2d 141, 21 Ut.2d 306 (1968). In that case the non-custodial parent filed a petition for modification of a divorce decree that had been entered but a couple of months previous seeking a change of custody of the parties' minor child. The court found that

not only had the non-custodial parent failed to show any substantial change in circumstances justifying modification but that the said non-custodial parent had in several respects ignored the provisions of said decree. In so finding the court stated:

"— it is rather unconscionable to conclude that such unilateral change in circumstances could inure to the benefit of a conceited defaulter."

In the present case the defendant not only refused the plaintiff access to her children prior to the entry of the Decree of Divorce but upon the entry of the same Defendant continued to deprive Plaintiff of custody of the children forcing the Plaintiff to seek court sanctions to obtain physical custody of the children.

The court in Watts v. Watts, supra, continued its findings which again have direct relation to the facts in the present action:

"Many children are unhappy at home, as were Tom and Huck, which is a good reason only to say they are unhappy at home. Discipline is something else, which a trial court must learn to spell without necessarily equating the term with 'unhappy'. We think the trial court did a pretty good job of equating — especially since the facts reflect at least a possible surmise that the Pied Piper was lurking in the shadows — not with a whistle, perhaps, but mayhap with tempting ice cream cones or toy space ship."

Again, the similarity is striking to the present case wherein the plaintiff had only had the custody of the children for one month prior to turning the children over to the defendant for their summer visitation, whereupon defendant again refused to turn the children over to the plaintiff and instituted his motion for modification of decree. As Judge Banks stated, there is considerable evidence that the defendant had engaged in similar "Pied Piper" activities.

It is a well settled legal premise within the jurisdiction of the State of Utah that a petition or motion for modification of a divorce decree is, and especially with reference to custody of minor children, is an equitable proceeding. It is also well settled that the petitioner is required to show substantial or material "changed circumstances" from those that existed at the time the court entered its prior order or decree. Without such a prerequisite, the bitter and emotional contest entered into between two litigants in a divorce action could drag on indefinitely. The case of Crofts v. Crofts, 445 P.2d 701, 21 Ut.2d 332, established the need for "Finalization" within the scope of the continuing jurisdiction of the domestic relation courts of the State of Utah. In referring to the finality of a judgment regarding the disposal of children or the distribution of property, the court describes subsequent changes as follows:

"This, however requires some good cause based upon a change of circumstances for modifying the decree and cannot be done by interpreting the language thereof. Litigation must be put to an end, and it is the function of a final judgment to do just that. A judgment is the final consideration in determination of a court on matters submitted to it in an action or proceeding. (49 C.J.S. Judgments §1)"

As stated above "Judgment" in the present action was entered by the abovesaid court following a two day trial on the 24th day of May, 1977. Less than two months subsequent, the defendant filed his Motion to Modify the Decree (July 15, 1977), requesting change of custody of the children from the plaintiff to himself. (R. 83) Notwithstanding the defendant's failure to set forth the change of circumstances and in particular the "good cause" upon which he based his motion, the lower court provided

the defendant with a second opportunity within a six month time span to again present evidence in substantiation of his recurring claim. Again the court found in favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant as to the issue of custody of the parties' minor children. It is therefore apparent that the "Common Sense Finality" rule espoused by the court in Crofts v. Crofts, supra, demands application to the present case.

Another generally accepted legal premise espoused by the Supreme Court of the State of Utah deals with the discretion and latitude granted to the trial court in assessing the many factors pertinent to an award of custody in divorce litigation. Although this discretion is not unimpeachable, it is nevertheless, one that by the very nature of the issues confronted must be and is employed by the Supreme Court of this State. In Robinson v. Robinson, 391 P.2d 434, 15 Ut.2d 293 (1964), the Court found as follows:

"As we have often observed, on appeal, it is advisable to allow considerable latitude of discretion to the trial court in such matters because of his advantage position to judge the personalities and characters of those involved."

See also Cox v. Cox, 532 P.2d 993 (1975), and Hyde v. Hyde, 454 P.2d 884, 22 Ut. 2d 429 (1969). In the case of Weiss v. Weiss, 469 P.2d 504, 24 Ut.2d 236 (1970), Justice Henroid in dissenting opinion thereto took umbrage with the majority opinions position relative to the trial court's discretion by stating as follows:

"They (referring to the main opinion's reference to the discretion granted the lower court) are platitudes that unrealistically are not supportive of the prepon-

derance of the evidence, and in rendering lip service thereto, it seems to me, is a myopic appraisal of the findings of fact of not only one but two district court judges and they do not take into account what the main opinion claims we should do, — give due 'allowance for the advantaged position of the trial judge!."

Again, in the present case, two district court judges within the time span of less than six months heard the best evidence that the Defendant could produce in an effort to sustain his position regarding custody and the best evidence that the plaintiff could produce to sustain her position with regard to the custody of the parties' minor children and both concluded alike that the "plaintiff" as the mother of said children as a fit and proper person to have the care, custody and control of said children awarded to her subject to the right of the defendant to visit said children at reasonable times and places and further stated:

" . . . the best interest of the children will be served by their being in the physical custody and care and control of the plaintiff." (R. 50-51)

Again referring to the discretion of the trial judge, this court in the case of Henderson v. Henderson, Supreme Court of the State of Utah, March 1978, stated in referring to the trial judge:

"He is necessarily clothed with great discretion in matters of this kind, and we cannot conclude that he erred."

Notwithstanding the irrelevancy of the innuendos regarding the relationship between the respondent and Warren Alphonse Mulder, as described in the Appellant's Brief, there does not appear in the record any evidence whatsoever that the relationship between the Respondent and Mr. Mulder in any way inhibits the Respondent from performing the

maternal needs of the parties' minor children. In fact, insomuch as the Respondent and Mr. Mulder are now wife and husband, and insofar as Mr. Mulder is in a position to support and maintain both the Plaintiff and the minor children, the Plaintiff is in a far superior position to provide for the best interests and needs of the children, whereas the Appellant must look to external care for the children while he is pursuing his livelihood.

It is also interesting to note how much reliance the Appellant places on the Custody Evaluation as filed with the lower court. It is obvious that such an evaluation conducted after three of the four minor children have been in the physical custody of the Appellant for 17 of the preceding 18 months, could have any validity whatsoever in light of Judge Banks' finding that the Defendant had engaged in substantial efforts to "poison the well". To understand the minor children's attitude toward Mr. Mulder as expressed in their interviews in the Custody Evaluation (R. 104) one must also investigate the malice and harrassment exercised by the Defendant in bringing a lawsuit against Mr. Mulder and furthermore which lead the defendant to have his own children picked up and placed in protective custody during the one month in the last twenty five months that the plaintiff has actually had physical custody of all of the minor children (R. 163).

#### CONCLUSION

This Court should affirm the trial court decisions of both Judge Banks and Judge Sawaya by affirming Judge Sawaya's Order denying

defendant's Motion to Modify Decree of Divorce, said Order being in the best interests of the four minor children of the parties hereto. Furthermore, this Court should award to the Plaintiff her reasonable cost incurred on this Appeal.